
           

 

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS
STATE OF OHIO

City Council Meeting
Regular Session

June 27, 2022
6:00 P.M.

City Hall - Council Chambers - 6131 Taylorsville Road

 

           
1. Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore   
 

2. Invocation - Pastor Festus Rucigitaramo Of The Dayton Compassion Church At
6875 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio

  

 

3. Pledge Of Allegiance   
 

4. Roll Call   
 

5. Approval Of Minutes   
 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes - June 13, 2022
 
6. Special Presentations/Announcements   
 

A. Huber Heights Police Division K9 Recognition Presentations:

-  Presentation Of Plaque To Mrs. Teresa Huber In Appreciation Of Her Continued
   Support Of The Huber Heights Police Division K9 Program.
-  Recognition Of Dedicated Service Of K9 Officer Mike Reckner And Retired K9 Adu.
-  Recognition Of Dedicated Service Of K9 Officer Cory Siegrist And Retired K9 Eddie.
-  Introduction Of K9 Officer Shawn Waler And New K9 Samo.



 
B. Announcement: The City Is Required To Make A Public Notice And Announcement Of

The Final Cost To Property Owners Of The 2022 Sidewalk Program Prior To Beginning
The Assessment Process.  The 2022 Sidewalk Program Is Complete And The Final Cost
For Property Owners Is $109,674.27. 

 
7. Citizens Comments   
 

8. Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items   
 

9. City Manager Report   
 

10. Pending Business   
 

A. An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections Of Part One – Administrative Code Of The
Huber Heights Codified Ordinances.
(second reading)

 
11. New Business   
 

CITY COUNCIL
Anthony Rodgers, Clerk of Council

  

 

A. An Ordinance Approving The Editing And Inclusion Of Certain Ordinances And/Or
Resolutions As Parts Of The Various Component Codes Of The City Code Of Huber
Heights, Ohio; Providing For The Adoption And Publication Of New Matter In The
Updated And Revised City Code As Supplement 10; And Repealing Ordinances And
Resolutions In Conflict Therewith.
(first reading)

 
B. A Resolution To Appoint Richard Dzik To The Position Of City Manager Of The City Of

Huber Heights.
(first reading)

 
ADMINISTRATION
Katie Knisley, Human Resources Director

  

 

C. Energy Aggregation Discussion
 

D. An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making Supplemental
Appropriations For Expenses Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio For The Period
Beginning January 1, 2022 And Ending December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

 



E. A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 2021-R-7065 To Authorize An Increase In The
Not To Exceed Amounts For Diesel Fuel And Gasoline.
(first reading)

 
F. A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An Agreement To Expand

Thomas Cloud Park By Nine Acres.
(first reading)

 
G. A Resolution Declaring It Necessary To Improve Public Streets And Easements In

Section 2 - Phase 5 And Section 7 - Phase 5 By Constructing And Installing Certain
Public Infrastructure Improvements, Including Street Improvements, Subbase, Concrete
Curb/Gutter With Drainage, Asphalt, Street Lights And Signs, Sidewalk, Survey Work
And Engineering, And In Each Case, All Other Costs And Improvements Necessary And
Appurtenant Thereto.
(first reading)

 
H. An Ordinance Determining To Proceed With The Improvement Of Public Streets And

Easements, In Section 2- Phase 5 And Section 7 - Phase 5 By Constructing And
Installing Certain Public Infrastructure Improvements, Including Street Improvements,
Subbase, Concrete Curb/Gutter With Drainage, Asphalt, Street Lights And Signs,
Sidewalk, Survey Work And Engineering, And In Each Case, All Other Costs And
Improvements Necessary And Appurtenant Thereto.
(first reading)

 
I. A Resolution Increasing The Not To Exceed Amount And Authorizing The City Manager

To Enter Into A Contract For The 2022 Water Main Replacement Project.
(first reading)

 
J. A Resolution Setting Forth The Intention To Appropriate Certain Land Adjacent To The

City Well Field For Public Purposes.
(first reading)

 
12. City Official Reports and Comments   
 

13. Executive Session   
 

14. Adjournment   
 



   
AI-8492     Minutes      A.        
City Council Meeting
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Approval of Minutes - 6/13/22
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
City Council Meeting Minutes - June 13, 2022

Purpose and Background
Approval of the minutes from the June 13, 2022 City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:
There are no financial implications to this agenda item.

Attachments
Minutes 



 

1.   Call The Meeting To Order - Mayor Jeff Gore

 
  The Huber Heights City Council met in a Regular Session on June 13, 2022.  Vice

Mayor Mark Campbell called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.

 
2.   Invocation - Pastor Festus Rucigitaramo Of The Dayton Compassion Church At

6875 Old Troy Pike, Huber Heights, Ohio

 
3.   Pledge Of Allegiance

 
4.   Roll Call

Present:  Richard Shaw, Kathleen Baker, Mark Campbell, Nancy
Byrge, Ed Lyons, Anita Kitchen, Don Webb 

Absent:  Glenn Otto, Jeff Gore 

  Vice Mayor Mark Campbell moved to excuse the absences of Mr. Otto and Mayor
Gore; Mr. Lyons seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Ms. Baker, Mr.
Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, and Mr. Shaw voted yea;
none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

Mr. Lyons moved to amend the agenda to add Item 11-L for the appointment of Gerald
Smith as City Manager; Mr. Shaw seconded the motion.  

Mr. Shaw said he appreciated the communications he received from the President of
the Dayton Chapter of the NAACP and with the Culture and Diversity Citizen Action
Commission.  He said the willingness of all to be involved and supply opinions and
beliefs on how the City Manager search process should move forward is appropriate. 
He said in reading the communication from the Dayton Chapter of the NAACP, an
action was requested this evening.  He thanked Mr. Lyons for bringing this matter
before Council.

Clerk of Council Anthony Rodgers said to clarify, this is a motion to amend the agenda
to add this item and it is not approval of the appointment of Mr. Smith.

On a call of the vote, Mr. Shaw, Mr. Lyons, and Mrs. Kitchen voted yea; Ms. Baker,
Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, and Mr. Webb voted nay.  The motion fails 3-4.

 
5.   Approval Of Minutes

 
  A.    City Council Meeting Minutes - May 23, 2022   

 
6.   Special Presentations/Announcements

 
  A.    Huber Heights Lemonade Day Proclamation Presentation   

 
  Mr. Rodgers said the date of this event is June 18, 2022. 

Vice Mayor Campbell read the proclamation for Lemonade Day.  

Mr. Rodgers interrupted and notified the A/V operator that the issue of no sound on the
live stream of the meeting had been reported.  

Mr. Campbell continued reading the proclamation for Lemondade Day.  

1 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



Mr. Shaw thanked those involved for the past support of this event and he asked for
this event to be added to the calendar on the City's website.

 
7.   Citizens Comments

 
  There were no Citizens Comments.

 
8.   Citizens Registered to Speak on Agenda Items

 
  Mr. Rodgers said one citizen is registered to speak on Item 11-K.

 
9.   City Manager Report

 
  Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said from 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p. on June 16,

2022 is the first $4 Tuesday at the Kroger Aquatic Center.  He said the free summer
movie events begin at the parks with Homeward Bound on June 17, 2022.  He said  the
Summer Music Series at the Eichelberger Amphitheater continues with the Fries Band
on June 18, 2022.  He said Culture Week will begin on June 19, 2022, sponsored by
the Culture and Diversity Citizens Action Commission.  He said the Juneteenth Music
Festival kicks off that night with the Fly City Funk Band, which starts at 5:00 p.m. at
the Eichelberger Amphitheater.  He said all of the Culture Week events can be found
on the home page of the City's website. 

Mr. Shaw confirmed with Mr. Chodkowski that the Culture Week events are also
displayed on the digital boards.

Mr. Lyons said the agenda was absent the City Manager's second reading for the
resolution to appoint John Russell as City Manager, and he asked Mr. Chodkowski
why it was not on the agenda?

Mr. Rodgers said this item was considered a dead matter since it had been considered
at the last City Council Meeting and it was referred to a City Council Special Meeting
which never took place.  He said that is why the resolution was not on the agenda.

Mr. Lyons said he assumed once there is a resolution and a reading, it has to have an
action of Council, otherwise it goes to the next meeting per Robert's Rules of Order. 
He asked Law Director Gerald McDonald why he did not address the City Charter in
his legal opinion regarding the Campbell Berling development across from The
Oaks.  He said the City Charter is very specific in the fact it takes five affirmative
votes.  He said according to Mr. McDonald's opinion, Mr. Lyons walking out was an
acquiescence, and Mr. McDonald did not address how an acquiescence becomes an
affirmative vote.

Mr. McDonald said he did not believe it was necessary or relevant to his opinion.  He
explained that an affirmative vote means yes, as opposed to a negative vote, which
would be no, and Mr. Lyons' vote was deemed as an affirmative vote.  

Mr. Lyons said he sent Vice Mayor Mark Campbell and Mayor Gore an email on
Friday with a legal opinion he obtained and he assumes that Mr. McDonald's opinion
today was the answer to that issue.  He thanked all for hearing him out and listening to
his opinion.  He said if Council has a desire to change that decision, it can only be done
tonight.  

Mr. Campbell asked Mr. Lyons if he would like to make a motion to reconsider.

Mr. Lyons said he did not think he could make a motion to reconsider and
he deferred to Gerald McDonald.  

Mr. McDonald said the original issue was on May 9, 2022, and on May 23, 2022,  it
was his opinion it was deemed to be passed on May 9, 2022, which in theory would

2 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



mean a motion to reconsider would have had to be made at the last City Council
Meeting.  He said the issue of referendum was discussed, which is a constitutional
issue, and he felt, from a constitutional standpoint, the thirty-day referendum period
could not have started on May 9, 2022 because no one would have reason to
know they needed to file a referendum at that time and that it would not be until May
23, 2022.  He said he does not believe there is any case law, and legally he cannot
advise one way or another.  He said from an equitable standpoint, a motion to
reconsider today is probably a fair interpretation.  He said he does not see anything
legally to prevent a motion to reconsider.  He said anyone in the affirmative could
make a motion to reconsider, and that could be Mr. Lyons.

Mr. Lyons said the opinion from his attorney is that he did not vote in the affirmative. 
Mr. Lyons said his opinion is he didn't vote in the affirmative, but he wanted to give
Council the opportunity to make a motion to reconsider, which is the reason he sent
emails to the Vice Mayor and Mayor and copied everyone on Council to let them
know that a motion to reconsider would have to come from one of them who voted in
the affirmative.  

Vice Mayor Campbell asked Mr. Lyons what he thought would come from the
Councilmembers.  

Mr. Lyons replied a motion to reconsider and then further discussion from Mr.
McDonald on the legality and making sure his legal opinion is rock solid.  He said he
would not expect Council to take anyone's opinion over the Law Director, but at the
same time, he is giving Council an opportunity.

No motion to reconsider was made by any Councilmember.

 
10.   Pending Business

 
  A.    An Ordinance Approving Individual Assessments Amounts And Directing The Director

Of Finance Or His/Her Designee To Certify The Amounts To The Applicable County
Auditor For Collection, And Declaring An Emergency.
(second reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation certifies approximately $19,000.00 in monies

owed past due to the City.  He said this item is at the second and final reading.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Mr. Webb moved to adopt; Mrs. Kitchen seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, and Ms.
Baker voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
11.   New Business

 
  CITY COUNCIL

Anthony Rodgers, Clerk of Council

 
  A.    A Motion To Appoint Lisa Jeter To The Citizens Water And Sewer Advisory

Board For A Term Ending January 1, 2025.
  

 
  Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to

adopt this item.

Ms. Baker moved to adopt; Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, and Mr.
Campbell voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 

3 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



  B.    A Public Hearing Scheduled For June 13, 2022, By The Huber Heights City Council For
Discussion Of The 2023 Tax Budget. 

  

 
  Vice Mayor Mark Campbell opened the Public Hearing for discussion and approval of

the 2023 Tax Budget.

Interim City Manager Bryan Chodkowski said this hearing is a requirement of the
Ohio Revised Code and presents the City's anticipated tax revenues for Fiscal Year
2023, beginning on January 1, 2023.  He said relative to last year's projected tax
revenues, the revenues have increased about $11 million or so.  

Vice Mayor Campbell asked if Law Director Gerald McDonald had any comments.

Seeing none, Vice Mayor Campbell asked if there was anyone present to speak in
favor of the approval of this issue.

Seeing none, Vice Mayor Campbell asked if there was anyone present to speak against
the approval of this issue.

Seeing none, Vice Mayor Campbell asked if there was any member of City Council to
make comments or to provide additional information.

Seeing none, Vice Mayor Campbell asked one last time if there was anyone to speak
in favor of or against the approval of the 2023 Tax Budget.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said, barring further comments, this Public Hearing of the
City Council for the 2023 Tax Budget is hereby closed.

 
  ADMINISTRATION

Bryan Chodkowski, Interim City Manager

 
  C.    A Resolution Approving The City Of Huber Heights Five-Year Capital Improvement

Plan For 2023-2027.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation is the adoption of the City's Capital Improvement

Plan (CIP).  He said over the next five years, this CIP is the City's long-term planning
tool and it is a City Charter requirement.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Ms. Baker seconded the motion.  

Mrs. Byrge asked Mr. Chodkowski if he received feedback from the IT Director
regarding the questions she raised regarding equipment.

Mr. Chodkowski said there has been no detailed discussion since Mrs. Byrge presented
that information.  He said the IT Director had been on vacation, but those are
comments that have been put into the 2023 City Budget.  He said City Staff will look
into incorporating what the City is able to incorporate at that time.  

On a call of the vote, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr.
Campbell, and Mrs. Byrge voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
  D.    A Resolution Adopting A Preliminary Tax Budget For Revenues Of The City Of Huber

Heights, Ohio For The Period Beginning January 1, 2023 And Ending December 31,
2023. 
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation adopts the proposed 2023 Tax Budget as

4 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation adopts the proposed 2023 Tax Budget as
discussed earlier in the Public Hearing.  He said this legislation is a statutory
requirement.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Ms. Baker moved to adopt; Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, and Mr.
Lyons voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
  E.    A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The City Of Huber Heights Organizational

Chart And Authorizing The New Personnel Staffing Levels As Detailed Below.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation authorizes the creation of the Director of

Planning and Community Development and fully stands up the position of Economic
Development Director.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Mrs. Byrge moved to adopt; Mr. Webb seconded the motion.  

Mr. Lyons said after careful consideration in standing up a Director of Planning and
Development and then funding it, he cannot vote in support of this item tonight based
on the fact that the City had not hired the additional firefighters he had requested.  

On a call of the vote, Mr. Webb, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, and Mrs.
Kitchen voted yea; Mr. Shaw and Mr. Lyons voted nay.  The motion passes 5-2.

 
  F.    An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections Of Part One – Administrative Code Of The

Huber Heights Codified Ordinances.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this item includes technical changes within the Administrative

Code of the Huber Heights City Code to make the previously approved legislation for
staffing changes legal.  

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
waive the second reading and adopt this item.

Mr. Webb moved to waive the second reading; Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  On a
call of the vote, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, and Mr. Webb voted yea; Mr.
Shaw, Mr. Lyons, and Mrs. Kitchen voted nay.  The motion fails 4-3.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said this item will move on to a second reading.

 
  G.    A Resolution Establishing And/Or Amending The Salary Ranges And Wage Levels For

Employees Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio.                                          
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation provides the salary ranges for the positions

approved previously on tonight's agenda.

Ms. Baker moved to adopt;  Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mrs. Kitchen, and Mr. Webb voted yea; Mr.
Lyons and Mr. Shaw voted nay.  The motion passes 5-2.

 
  H.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Non-Binding Letter Of   

5 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



  H.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A Non-Binding Letter Of
Intent For 1.32 Acres (+/-) Of Real Property On Executive Boulevard.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said pursuant to discussions with Council in Executive Session, this

piece of legislation authorizes the City to enter into this Letter of Intent, effectively
empowering City Staff to begin more formal negotiations with the interested party. 

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Mr. Webb moved to adopt; Ms. Baker seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote, Mr.
Campbell, Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, and Ms. Baker
voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
  I.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Submit An Application And To Accept

Grant Funds From The State Of Ohio For The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) First
Responder Wellness, Recruitment, Retention And Resiliency Grant Program.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this grant would allow the City to fund three firefighters and one

medical director for a period of two years.  He said the application deadline is
imminent.  

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.

Mrs. Kitchen moved to adopt; Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mrs. Byrge, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, and Mr.
Campbell voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
  J.    A Final Resolution For ODOT To Resurface Old Troy Pike (State Route 202) From 200

Feet North Of Fishburg Road To The South City Limit.
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this work is scheduled work by the Ohio Department of

Transportation.  He said the City's share of this project will be slightly less than
$170,000.00.

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said the Council Work Session recommendation was to
adopt this item.  

Ms. Baker moved to adopt; Mrs. Kitchen seconded the motion.  On a call of the vote,
Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr. Campbell, and Mrs.
Byrge voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.

 
  K.    A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Solicit Requests For Qualifications

From Engineering Qualified Consulting Firms To Provide Engineering Design For The
Chambersburg Road West Improvements Project. 
(first reading)

  

 
  Mr. Chodkowski said this legislation authorizes City Staff to solicit and seek a Request

for Qualifications (RFQ) from engineering firms to determine the best qualified firm
to begin the design work for this project.

Mr. Rodgers said one citizen was registered to speak on this item, and he called Mr.
Scott Davidson to the podium.

Mr. Davidson passed out information to Council.  He said this project is right on his
property line and has an easement that goes to Chambersburg Road.  He said he
understands the road expansion and the curb, but a sidewalk cuts into the woods and

6 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



brush on his property.  He said the aerial photo shows some of the sidewalk will get
into the tree line and that trees will be cut down.  He said he did not understand a
sidewalk there as there is one house on Endicott Road on the Fishburg Road side and
one house on Endicott Road on the Chambersburg Road side.   He said he understood
a sidewalk on the north side of Chambersburg Road.  He asked City Staff to bring this
matter to the City Engineer's attention.  He said he did not know the rules for having a
bike path.  

Mr. Chodkowski said he was happy to pull up the preliminary design concepts and
forward those to Mr. Davidson.  He said the bulk of the work is happening on the north
side.  

Mr. Campbell thanked Mr. Davidson and said the Interim City Manager will reach out
and set up a time to discuss this matter.  

Ms. Baker moved to adopt; Mrs. Byrge seconded the motion.  

Mr. Lyons thanked Mr. Davidson.  He asked Mr. Chodkowski if the Request For
Qualifications is very early in the process?

Mr. Chodkowski said that is correct.  He said he does not believe construction is
planned until 2024.  He said the total process from award to construction is five years.  

Mr. Lyons asked about the preliminary plan to have the sidewalk on that particular side
of the road.  If Council views it as important to the issue Mr. Davidson brought up, is
there still plenty of time to change the plan if that is the decision of Council? 

Mr. Chodkowski said the City is still in the position to make certain amendments to the
project, but there are qualification factors measured by the Ohio Department of
Transportation (ODOT), so City Staff will need to make sure any modifications meet
the qualifying factors.  

Mr. Lyons told Mr. Davidson that he is early, and the issue can still be remedied if
Council deems it needs to be changed.  Mr. Lyons said the sidewalk/bike path is a
concrete bike path that doubles two for one.  He said a sidewalk can be put in for
roughly the same price as a bike path which is a couple of feet wider than a normal
sidewalk.  He said he believes this sidewalk is a requirement of the Miami Valley
Regional Planning Commission (MVRPC).  He said he is not the authority on this
matter.  

Mr. Shaw said the MVRPC does hold public hearings on these matters.  He said after
these projects are passed by this body, and before the projects are fully approved and
funded, those public hearings do take place.  He said there could still be changes.  He
said the City does have to be cognizant of growth as it takes place to make sure the
development and road widening for the ultimate master plan works out for all parties.  

Mr. Davidson asked if the City of Dayton was on board to continue the sidewalk down
to the Villas or would it just stop there.

Mrs. Byrge said MVRPC's role is not to put requirements on the City.  She said
Council passed a resolution that bike paths/sidewalks are to be installed with any new
developments.  She explained the process for grant requirements and funding.  She said
the City of Dayton is ready to partner with Huber Heights to take the sidewalk from
west of Endicott Road down to the bike path.  She said the City has not sat down yet
with the City of Dayton to devise a plan.

On a call of the vote, Mr. Lyons, Mrs. Kitchen, Mr. Webb, Mr. Shaw, Ms. Baker, Mr.
Campbell, and Mrs. Byrge voted yea; none voted nay.  The motion passes 7-0.
Mr. Shaw said 

 
12.   City Official Reports and Comments

 
  Ms. Baker asked for an update on the Riverside/Dayton housing development near

7 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



  Ms. Baker asked for an update on the Riverside/Dayton housing development near
Huber Heights.  

Mr. Chodkowski said he had no specific update.  He said the legislation previously
discussed regarding resolving the issue of the thirteen homes is scheduled to be on the
agenda at the next Council Work Session.  

Mr. Shaw said Council needs to look outside the box at a capital improvement within
the community.  He said the Public Works Division facility has been a top priority of
his.  He said an amount of anywhere from $10 to 15 million is needed to see the
facility and improvements all the way through.  He requested that conversation start
immediately with the State of Ohio Representatives and State of Ohio Senators about
making a state budget request in excess of $10 million in order to fund the entire
Public Works Division facility.  He said outside a grant opportunity through the federal
government, he does not believe the City has ever made a state capital budget request. 
He said a state capital budget request for any leftover American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) funds that may be available would be a prime opportunity.  He said he would
like to start to engage in those conversations if needed in conjunction with the City
Manager.  He said the City has one shot to get the best Public Works Division facility.  

Mr. Campbell asked if this engagement is something Council or City Staff would do?

Mr. Shaw said providing direction to the City Manager's Office to make that
conversation happen and to get on schedules and radars is important.  

Mrs. Byrge asked Mr. Shaw who he contacted when he went after the money for The
Barn project as he said he had said he was going to contact state elected officials to get
$100,000 for The Barn. 

Mr. Shaw said he was willing to make those contacts, but he received no support from
the City Manager's Office.  

Mrs. Kitchen said she went to the bike park dedication on Saturday and it was well
attended.  She said she loves the relationship built with the church next door.  She said
it was a really nice event.

Mr. Lyons said, regarding the direction Mr. Shaw mentioned, he is fine with putting
that item on the agenda for the next Council Work Session for discussion or if Council
is entertaining directing the City Manager, he is fine with that course as well.  

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said if it is placed on the Council Work Session agenda,
he would hope there would be information to present at the Council Work Session.  

Mr. Lyons said if Mr. Shaw would be a first, he himself would be a second, and if there
is a third, that would compel this item to be on the next Council Work Session agenda.

Mr. Shaw said he would be happy to be on the phone with state officials tomorrow
with a bullet list.

Mrs. Kitchen asked for an update on the Community Park playground equipment.

Mr. Chodkowski said he has no update for tonight.  He said the regularly scheduled
City Staff meeting is tomorrow morning and he would be happy to follow up then and
send an email so Council has that information to share with constituents.  

Ms. Baker told Mrs. Kitchen that the playground equipment is up at the Eichelberger
Amphitheater.  

Vice Mayor Mark Campbell said Mr. Shaw had mentioned when the motion was made
that Dr. Derrick L. Foward gave Council a date to comply with his letter.  Mr.
Campbell read the last sentence of the letter asking for a decision by 5:00 p.m.
Tuesday, June 14, 2022.  He said that date is tomorrow, not tonight.  He said Mr.
Rodgers asked him to remind everyone of the Huber Heights Library groundbreaking
ceremony at 11:00 a.m. tomorrow.

 

8 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



13.   Executive Session

 
  There was no need for an Executive Session.

 
14.   Adjournment

 
Vice Mayor Mark Campbell adjourned the Regular Session City Council Meeting at 6:56 p.m.  

  
____________________________
Clerk of Council

   ____________________________
Date

     
____________________________
Mayor

  ____________________________
Date

9 

  
Huber Heights City Council

In Council Chambers
6131 Taylorsville Road

June 13,      2022



   
AI-8393     Special Presentations/Announcements      A.        
City Council Meeting Police    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Huber Heights Police Division K9 Recognition Presentations
Submitted By: Maria Beisel
Department: Police Division: Police
Council Committee Review?: None Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

N/A

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Huber Heights Police Division K9 Recognition Presentations:

-  Presentation Of Plaque To Mrs. Teresa Huber In Appreciation Of Her Continued
   Support Of The Huber Heights Police Division K9 Program.
-  Recognition Of Dedicated Service Of K9 Officer Mike Reckner And Retired K9 Adu.
-  Recognition Of Dedicated Service Of K9 Officer Cory Siegrist And Retired K9 Eddie.
-  Introduction Of K9 Officer Shawn Waler And New K9 Samo.

Purpose and Background
Mrs. Teresa Huber has long supported the Huber Heights Police Division and has provided 7 police dogs to date to the Huber Heights Police
Division K9 Program.  The Huber Heights Police Division desires to publicly recognize and thank Mrs. Huber for her support.

The Huber Heights Police Division also desires to recognize K9 Officer Mike Reckner and K9 Officer Cory Siegrist and their retired K9s for their
dedicated service. 

The Huber Heights Police Division also would like to introduce Samo, the newest K9 procured with the support of Mrs. Huber, and his K9
handler, Officer Shawn Waler.

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: NA
Cost: NA
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): NA
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): NA
Financial Implications:
NA

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8471     Special Presentations/Announcements      B.        
City Council Meeting Finance    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
2022 Sidewalk Program Assessments Announcement
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: None
Date(s) of Committee Review: N/A  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Announcement: The City Is Required To Make A Public Notice And Announcement Of The Final Cost To Property Owners Of
The 2022 Sidewalk Program Prior To Beginning The Assessment Process.  The 2022 Sidewalk Program Is Complete And The
Final Cost For Property Owners Is $109,674.27. 

Purpose and Background
The City is required to make a public notice and announcement of the final cost to property owners of the 2022 Sidewalk
Program prior to beginning the assessment process.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
2022 Sidewalk Program Announcement 



 
 

MEMORANDUM      
 
 
Date:  June 10, 2022 
 
To:  Anthony Rodgers 
  Clerk of Council 
 
From:           Amanda May  
  Finance Department 
 
Subject: 2022 Sidewalk Program 
 
 
        The 2022 Sidewalk Program is complete and the final cost for 
property owners is $109,674.27. Would you please have this read at 
the council meeting on June 27, 2022 so that we may start the 
assessment process?   
      
Thanks! 
 
Amanda 
      
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
AI-8490     Pending Business      A.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Part One - Administrative Code - Huber Heights Codified Ordinances - Changes
Submitted By: Katie Knisley
Department: Human Resources
Council Committee Review?: Council Work

Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/07/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Amending Certain Sections Of Part One – Administrative Code Of The Huber Heights Codified
Ordinances.
(second reading)

Purpose and Background
Chapter 136 of Part One - Administrative Code has been identified as needing to be updated or amended to
provide for a more consistent organizational structure for the City.  The amendment is to create the Department of
Planning and Community Development to be managed by the Planning and Community Development Director and
this department shall be responsible for providing technical and practical processes for land use planning to
regulate the use, form, design and compatibility of development as well as to review applications to ensure
compliance with planning and zoning requirements. 

Fiscal Impact

Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-R- 

 
 
AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS OF PART ONE – ADMINISTRATIVE CODE OF THE HUBER 
HEIGHTS CODIFIED ORDINANCES. 
 
WHEREAS, the citizens of Huber Heights require City codified ordinances that are current, up to date and 
reflect the current practices and processes of the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, it has been identified that there are provisions within the Administrative Code that require 
updating or other changes; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the revisions in Chapters 136 are necessary to enhance 
the effective and efficient delivery of municipal services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1.   Part One - Administrative Code, Title Five – Administrative, Chapter 136 – 
Department of Planning is hereby amended as follows: 
 

CHAPTER 136 - DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT 
 

 136.01 – Creation; organization; administration 
  

(a) The Department of Planning and Community Development, to be managed by the City 
Planner Director of Planning and Community Development, is hereby established as a 
new department. 
 

(b) The Department of Planning and Community Development shall be responsible for 
providing technical and practical processes for land use planning to regulate the use, 
form, design and compatibility of development, as well as reviewing applications to 
ensure compliance with planning and zoning requirements. 

 
(c) The Department of Planning and Community Development shall advise the 

Planning Commission and City Council on land use and special projects. 
 

136.02 - Division of building. 
 

(a)The State of Ohio requires the establishment of a City Building Division prior to the 
exercise of enforcement authority by the Montgomery County Building Department; 
therefore, the Huber Heights Building Division is hereby established. 

 
(b)The Building Division shall have full authority to enforce all laws, statutes and regulations 
as provided and authorized in the Ohio Revised Code and the Ohio Administrative Code 
including plumbing inspections as set forth in 4101:2-51-39 of the Administrative Code. 

 
Section 2.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022; 
______  Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 



AUTHENTICATION: 
 
            
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
            
Date      Date 



   
AI-8487     New Business      A.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
City Code - Supplement 10 - Adopting Ordinance
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Approving The Editing And Inclusion Of Certain Ordinances And/Or Resolutions As
Parts Of The Various Component Codes Of The City Code Of Huber Heights, Ohio; Providing For The
Adoption And Publication Of New Matter In The Updated And Revised City Code As Supplement 10;
And Repealing Ordinances And Resolutions In Conflict Therewith.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This ordinance is to adopt Supplement 10 to the City Code for the period of January 1, 2022 to March
31, 2022.  Appropriate legal notice of this ordinance has been advertised as required by the Huber
Heights City Charter.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O-   

 
 

APPROVING THE EDITING AND INCLUSION OF CERTAIN ORDINANCES 
AND/OR RESOLUTIONS AS PARTS OF THE VARIOUS COMPONENT CODES OF 
THE CITY CODE OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO; PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION 
AND PUBLICATION OF NEW MATTER IN THE UPDATED AND REVISED CITY 
CODE AS SUPPLEMENT 10; AND REPEALING ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
IN CONFLICT THEREWITH. 
 
WHEREAS, Municipal Code Corporation has completed its updating and revision of the City 
Code of Huber Heights, Ohio within Supplement 10; and 
 
WHEREAS, certain provisions within the City Code of Huber Heights, Ohio were changed to 
conform with current State law as required by the Ohio Constitution; and 
 
WHEREAS, various resolutions and/or ordinances of a general and permanent nature have been 
passed by the City Council which should be included in the City Code of Huber Heights, Ohio. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1. The resolutions and/or ordinances of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, of a 
general and permanent nature, as edited, revised, codified and re-codified, rearranged and 
consolidated into component codes, titles, chapters and sections within Supplement 10 to the 
City Code of Huber Heights, Ohio for the period of January 1, 2022 to March 31, 2022, a copy 
of which is available for copying and inspection in the Office of the Clerk of Council, and 
incorporated herein by this reference, are hereby approved and adopted. 
 
Section 2. The provisions within the City of Huber Heights Code that mirror provisions as 
contained in the Ohio Revised Code as set forth within Supplement 10 to the City Code of Huber 
Heights, Ohio for the period of January 1, 2022 to March 31, 2022, a copy of which is available 
for copying and inspection in the Office of the Clerk of Council, and incorporated herein by this 
reference, are hereby approved and adopted to conform with current State law. 
 
Section 3.   All ordinances and resolutions or parts thereof that are in conflict or inconsistent 
with any provision of the new matter adopted in Section 1 or 2 of this ordinance are hereby 
repealed as of the effective date of this ordinance except as follows: 
 
 (a) The enactment of such sections shall not be construed to affect a right or liability 

accrued or incurred under any legislative provision prior to the effective date of such 
enactment, or an action or proceeding for the enforcement of such right or liability.  Such 
enactment shall not be construed to relieve any person from punishment for an act 
committed in violation of any such legislative provision, nor to affect an indictment or 
prosecution therefor.  For such purposes, any such legislative provision shall continue in 
full force notwithstanding its repeal for the purposes of revision and recodification. 

 
 (b) The repeal provided above shall not affect any legislation enacted subsequent to 

March 31, 2022. 
 
Section 4. Pursuant to Section 5.08(B) of the Huber Heights City Charter, the Clerk of 
Council shall cause a notice of this proposed adopting Ordinance to be published one time in a 
newspaper of general circulation in the City at least seven days prior to adoption and no further 
publication shall be necessary.  Such publication shall constitute sufficient notice of all new 
material contained therein. 
 
Section 5. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 



Section 6. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022; 
______  Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
            
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
            
Date      Date 



   
AI-8491     New Business      B.        
City Council Meeting City Council    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
City Manager Appointment/Professional Services Agreement - R. Dzik
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution To Appoint Richard Dzik To The Position Of City Manager Of The City Of Huber Heights.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation is for City Council to appoint Richard Dzik as the City Manager and to approve a
professional services agreement for the new City Manager.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R- 

 

 
TO APPOINT RICHARD DZIK TO THE POSITION OF CITY MANAGER OF THE 
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS.  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to appoint Richard Dzik as City Manager of the City of 
Huber Heights; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council of Huber Heights to provide certain benefits and 
to establish certain conditions of the appointment and to set the compensation as set forth in the 
Professional Services Agreement. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1. Richard Dzik is hereby appointed to the position of City Manager of the City of 
Huber Heights in accord with the terms and conditions and compensation contained in the 
Professional Services Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A which is incorporated herein by 
this reference. 

 
Section 2. The Mayor is hereby authorized to sign said Professional Services Agreement on 
behalf of City Council and all other documents necessary to engage Richard Dzik as City 
Manager.  Four originals of the Professional Services Agreement shall be signed.  One original 
shall be kept with the City’s Finance Department.  A second original shall be kept with the City 
Law Director.  A third original shall be kept with the Clerk of Council.  A fourth original shall be 
provided to Richard Dzik. 
 
Section 3.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022; 
______  Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
            
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
            
Date      Date 
 



EXHIBIT A 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into this _______ day of 
______________, 2022, by and between the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, an Ohio municipal corporation, 
hereinafter called "City," and Richard Dzik hereinafter called "Dzik”.  
  

WITNESSETH 
 
WHEREAS, City desires to secure the services of Dzik as City Manager of the City of Huber Heights, as 
provided for in Article VI of the Charter of the City of Huber Heights; and  
 
WHEREAS, Dzik desires to accept the position as City Manager of Huber Heights, Ohio pursuant to the 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties agree as 
follows:  
 
Section 1. Nature of Appointment.    
 
 A.  City hereby agrees to appoint Dzik as City Manager of the City of Huber Heights to perform 

the functions and duties specified in the City Charter, and to perform such other legally 
permissible and proper duties and functions as the City Council shall from time-to-time assign, 
subject to this Agreement. 

 
 B.  Dzik agrees that he will support the Constitution of the United States, the Constitution of 

the State of Ohio, the Charter and all Ordinances of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, and will at all 
times faithfully, honestly, and impartially discharge the duties of the office of the City Manager to 
the best of his abilities. 

 
Section 2. Term of Agreement.  
 
 A.  Dzik shall serve at the pleasure of the City Council commencing TBD.  Dzik may be 

removed as City Manager at any time as provided in Section 6.03 of the City Charter. 
  
 B.  Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of Dzik 

to resign or retire at any time from his position with City.  However, Dzik agrees to provide thirty 
(30) days’ notice of his resignation. In the event Dzik decides to retire from City service, he agrees 
to provide City Council with a minimum of six (6) months of advance notice (unless such 
retirement is medical in nature or considered disability) of such retirement. 

 
 C.  Dzik agrees not to be employed by any third party while serving pursuant to this 

Agreement. The term "employed" however, shall not be construed to include occasional teaching 
or consulting performed outside of his working hours for the City and at his own cost, even if 
outside compensation is provided for such services.  Said activities are expressly allowed, provided 
that in no case is any activity allowed which would present a conflict of interest with the City of 
Huber Heights.  

 



Section 3. Residency 
 
 A.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Dzik as City Manager, an appointed municipal 

official, shall reside in the City as required by Section 6.01 of the City Charter. 
 
Section 4. Salary.  
 
 A.  City agrees to pay Dzik for his services rendered pursuant hereto as City Manager an 

annual base salary of One Hundred Sixty Thousand Dollars ($160,000.00) payable in installments 
at the same time as employees of the City are paid.   This annual base salary shall apply for the 
first three years of this Agreement so long as Dzik is City Manager.  City agrees to increase said 
salary by the annual Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA), if any, and any annual merit pay increase 
provided to City employees in accordance with the City of Huber Heights Performance 
Compensation Plan for Non-Bargaining Employees (or other documents which may be adopted 
by City Council from time to time for non-union employee compensation), effective with the first 
pay period as all non-union City employees on the first pay period of each year, without further 
action. 

 
Section 5. Vacation, Sick and Other Leave. 
 
 A.   Dzik shall be entitled to the accumulation of hours for various leave (including but not 

limited to vacation leave, personal leave, and sick leave) pursuant to City policies for non-
bargaining employees.  Dzik may opt to cash out the maximum number of hours per year of 
vacation, sick or other leave as provided for in the Employee Manual applicable to employees.  

 
Section 6. Insurance Coverage.  
 
 A.  Dzik shall be covered by the same life, health, dental, vision, disability plans, including the 

Family Medical Leave Act and worker’s compensation benefits, and any other insurance at least 
equal to that which is provided to employees of the City.  

 
Section 7. Other.  
 

A.  In his capacity as City Manager, Dzik shall also serve as the Director of Public Safety.  The 
position of Director of Public Safety is tied to the job of City Manager.  If for any reason Dzik is no 
longer City Manager, the designation as the Director of Public Safety shall automatically 
terminate.  No benefits accrue to Dzik hereunder in his capacity as Director of Public Safety.  As a 
result of the duties of Public Safety Director, Dzik is expected to respond to certain emergencies, 
and conduct activities associated with public safety and shall be provided with a City vehicle for 
his use pursuant to City policy. 
 
B.  Dzik shall to the fullest extent permitted by law, be covered and governed by the Ohio 
Public Employees Retirement System (OPERS), with the City contributing its required percentage 
of base salary.  Calculations for retirement contributions shall include all compensation normally 
reportable to OPERS. 
 
C.  Dzik shall be expected to further his education and attain professional certifications by 
taking courses in the field of organization management, public administration, and other areas 



directly relevant to his position as City Manager so as to enhance his skills as needed in his 
position.  Dzik will be expected to maintain his regular work schedule while attending such 
courses. Reimbursement for such education shall be according to the Educational Assistance 
policy applicable to City employees.  However, in this case, any advance approvals for courses 
shall be made by the Mayor.  
 
D.   Dzik shall provide to City Council and the community a monthly activity update unless 
otherwise provided by Council.   

 
Section 8. Policies, Rules and Regulations of City 
 
 A.  All provisions of the Charter, and policies, rules and regulations of the City including those 

relating to fringe benefits and working conditions as they now exist or hereafter may be amended, 
shall apply to Dzik as they do to non-union employees of the City.  All benefits which vary 
according to tenure shall be calculated and granted in accordance with City provisions applicable 
to City employees, based upon Dzik’s original employment date with the City. 

 
Section 9. Hours of Work.  
 
 A.  It is expected that Dzik will typically work during normal City Hall office hours.  However, 

it is recognized that Dzik must devote a great deal of time outside those normal office hours on 
business for the City including after hour meetings. Accordingly, and to that end, Dzik shall 
establish a work schedule necessary to fulfill his duties as City Manager.  Dzik is not eligible for 
overtime or paid compensatory hours.   

 
Section 10. Professional Development.  
 
 A.  City agrees to pay the expense of memberships, registration, travel, meals and lodging in 

association with business-related conferences, education or other meetings, according to 
approved appropriations for travel, training, and professional dues in the annual City Budget.  

  
 B.  Dzik shall attend regional groups for professional organization such as Mayor/Manager, 

Dayton Area Managers Association, Dayton Area Managers Roundtable, Ohio City/County 
Managers Association, etc., and will report to Council monthly regarding same unless otherwise 
directed by Council.   

 
Section 11. Moving and Relocation Expenses 
 

A.  Dzik has agreed that it is his intention to establish his sole residence within the corporate 
boundaries of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio within four (4) months of employment, and 
thereafter to maintain residence within the corporate boundaries of the City. 

  
B.  City shall pay the actual and reasonable moving expenses of City Manager in an amount 
not to exceed Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($8,500) upon presentation of invoices and 
receipts evidencing such expenditures.  Said moving expenses include packing, moving, storage 
costs, unpacking, and insurance charges.  In the event of Dzik’s election for early termination of 
employment with the City before completion of twelve (12) months of the Term, Dzik shall 
reimburse City all of said moving expenses.  In the event of Dzik’s election for early termination 



of employment with the City after completion of twelve (12) months of the Term but not more 
than twenty-four (24) months of the Term, Dzik shall reimburse the City for one-half of said 
moving expenses. 
 

Section 12. Indemnification.  
  
 A.  City shall defend, indemnify and hold Dzik harmless from and against any and all torts, 

claims, causes of action, demands, costs, expenses or other legal action, including all attorneys’ 
fees, whether groundless or otherwise, arising out of any alleged act or omission in connection 
with a governmental or proprietary function and occurring during or arising out of Dzik’s good 
faith performance of duties and not manifestly outside the scope of his appointment or official 
responsibilities as City Manager.  City shall have the right to compromise and settle any such claim 
or suit and shall pay the amount of any settlement or judgment rendered thereon.  Said 
indemnification shall extend beyond Dzik’s termination, and the otherwise expiration of this 
Agreement, to provide full and complete protection to Dzik by the City of Huber Heights, as 
described herein, for any acts undertaken or committed in his capacity as City Manager, 
regardless of whether the filing of a lawsuit for such tort, claim, cause of action, demand, or other 
legal action occurs during or following Dzik’s services to the City have ceased.  

 
Section 13. General Provisions.  
 
 A.   The text herein shall constitute the entire Agreement between the parties.  
 
 B.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law and 

executors of Dzik.  
 
 C.  This Agreement shall become effective only after adoption and approval by the City 

Council of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
 D.  If any provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement is held 

unconstitutional, invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or portion thereof, 
shall not be affected and shall remain in full force and effect.  

 
Section 14. Termination and Severance Pay. 
 

A. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit or otherwise interfere with the right of the 
Council to terminate the services of Dzik at any time with or without cause as provided by the City 
Charter. 
 
B. Terminated "for cause" shall mean Dzik is terminated because of a violation of, or failure 
to comply with, the terms of this Agreement; conviction of any illegal act involving personal gain 
to Dzik or any other person; or for any felony or for any crime of moral turpitude which negatively 
impacts the City. In the event Dzik is terminated for cause then, in that event, City shall have no 
obligation to pay the severance sum designated herein. 
 
C. In the event Dzik is terminated without cause, the City shall: (1) pay Dzik a lump sum cash 
payment equal to three (3) months of his annual base salary; (2) pay Dzik the unpaid balance of 
salary earned from the beginning of the then-current pay period through the date of termination; 



and (3) pay for all accrued benefits in accord with the Employment Manual of the City applicable 
to all employees. 
 
D. In the event the City Council at any time reduces the salary, compensation or other 
benefits of Dzik in a greater amount than an applicable across-the-board reduction Dzik may, at 
his option, be deemed to be "terminated without cause" at the date of such reduction.  Provided 
however, it is understood that this Agreement, including the salary may be renegotiated at the 
end of three years.  
 
E. For purposes of complying with Section 14 of this Agreement, appropriations held as an 
unencumbered fund balance in the General Fund or other account of the City shall be deemed to 
be available and authorized for transfer to the appropriate salary and benefit expenditure 
accounts to ensure fulfillment of this provision of the Agreement. 
 
F. Resignation or retirement by Dzik forfeits any rights of severance under this Agreement, 
except for such rights as would be provided to any City employee upon resignation or retirement 
pursuant to the City personnel rules, policies and regulations. 
 
G. Contemporaneously with the delivery of the severance pay set forth in this Agreement, 
Dzik shall execute and deliver to City a release, releasing City of all claims that Dzik may have 
against City. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Huber Heights has caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed by its Mayor and duly authenticated by its Clerk of Council, and Dzik has signed and 
executed this Agreement, the day and year first written above.  

 
 
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO       CITY MANAGER  
 
By:________________________________  By:________________________________           
Jeff Gore, Mayor     Richard Dzik 
 
AUTHENTICATION:          
 
By__________________________________   
Anthony C. Rodgers, Clerk of Council    
 



   
AI-8488     New Business      C.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
2022 Energy Aggregation 
Submitted By: Stephanie Wunderlich
Department: Engineering Division: Engineering
Council Committee Review?: Committee

of the
Whole

Date(s) of Committee Review: 05/17/22 and 06/21/22

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
Energy Aggregation Discussion

Purpose and Background
Mr. Rich Surace from Energy Alliances will be in attendance to discuss the City's Energy Aggregation
Program and what steps the City can take to get the Energy Aggregation Program started again.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
AI-8489     New Business      D.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Supplemental Appropriations
Submitted By: Jim Bell
Department: Finance Division: Accounting
Council Committee Review?: Council Work Session
Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022  
Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No
Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 By Making Supplemental Appropriations For
Expenses Of The City Of Huber Heights, Ohio For The Period Beginning January 1, 2022 And Ending
December 31, 2022.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
The supplemental appropriations are for the following purposes:

- $17,800 additional needed for current CAD/RMS current vendor until new vendor takes over.
- $22,500 for Code Red services.
- $163,000 for fuel for Police, Fire and Public Works vehicles.
- $24,022.58 for refund of Fire Insurance deposit (matched by recent deposit received).

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Various Funds
Cost: $203,300
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O- 

 
 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY MAKING SUPPLEMENTAL 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR 
THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2022 AND ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2022. 
 
WHEREAS, supplemental appropriations for expenses of the City of Huber Heights must be 
made for appropriations of funds for various 2022 operating and project funding. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1.   Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended as shown in Exhibit A of this 
Ordinance. 
 
Section 2.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 3. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022; 
______  Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________    
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
Date      Date 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 

 

 

 

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2021-O-2511 BY MAKING APPROPRIATIONS FOR EXPENSES OF THE 
CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO FOR THE PERIOD BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2022 AND ENDING 
DECEMBER 31, 2022. 
 

1) Section 1 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 101 General Fund, as follows: 
a. Subsection a) Dispatch, Operations and Capital of $17,800.00 

2) Section 5 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 209 Police Fund, as follows: 
a. Subsection a) Police, Operations and Capital of $63,000.00 

3) Section 6 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 210 Fire Fund, as follows: 
a. Subsection a) Fire, Operations and Capital of $77,500.00. 

4) Section 15 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 226 Local Street Operating Fund, as follows: 
a. Subsection a) Streets, Operations and Capital of $45,000.00. 

5) Section 47 of Ordinance No. 2021-O-2511 is hereby amended to reflect an increase in the appropriations 
of the 723 Fire Insurance Fund, as follows: 
a. Subsection a) Capital, Operations and Capital of $24,022.58. 
 

 
 
 
 

 

General Fund $17,800.00 

Police Fund $63,000.00 

Fire Fund $77,500.00 

Local Street Operating Fund $45,000.00 

Fire Insurance Fund $24,022.58 



   
AI-8481     New Business      E.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Increase Not To Exceed Amount - Diesel Fuel/Gasoline Vendors
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Amending Resolution No. 2021-R-7065 To Authorize An Increase In The Not To Exceed
Amounts For Diesel Fuel And Gasoline.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
Resolution No. 2021-R-7065 was approved by City Council on November 22, 201.  That legislation
included the approved not to exceed amounts for purchasing diesel fuel and gasoline.  The cost of
these fuels for all City vehicles has increased significantly.   Department/Division Heads submitted to
the Director of Finance revised estimates as to the increases needed in department/division budgets to
purchase fuel for the remainder of 2022.  Those increases are included in the supplemental
appropriations legislation.  In addition to increasing the City budget, City Staff are requesting that City
Council approve an increase to the not to exceed amounts for diesel fuel to $350,000 and an increase
in the not to exceed amounts for gasoline to $450,000.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Various Funds
Cost: $163,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R- 

 
 
AMENDING RESOLUTION NO. 2021-R-7065 TO AUTHORIZE AN INCREASE IN THE NOT 
TO EXCEED AMOUNTS FOR DIESEL FUEL AND GASOLINE. 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution No. 2021-R-7065 passed by Council on November 22, 2021 previously 
authorized a not to exceed purchase amount for diesel fuel of $200,000.00 and a not to exceed 
purchase amount for gasoline of $300,000.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the cost of diesel fuel and gasoline has increased far above expectations in 2022. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1.   Resolution No. 2021-R-7065 passed by Council on November 22, 2021 is hereby 
amended in Section 1 to increase the previously authorized not to exceed amount of $200,000.00 for 
diesel fuel and $300,000.00 for gasoline to a new total not to exceed amount of $350,000.00 for 
diesel fuel and $450,000.00 for gasoline. 
 
Section 2.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 3. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ____ day of ______ 2022; 
           Yeas;            Nays. 
 
Effective Date:   
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________   
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
______________________________ ______________________________   
Date      Date 
 



   
AI-8484     New Business      F.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Thomas Cloud Park Expansion Agreement
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into An Agreement To Expand Thomas Cloud
Park By Nine Acres.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
In an effort to advance the interests of the City of Huber Heights as it relates to a proposed
development of single-family homes on property immediately adjacent to the City's Thomas Cloud
Park, but outside the City limits; this legislation would authorize the City Manager to begin acquiring a
nine acre portion of the property in question.  This property acquisition is for the purpose of expanding
Thomas Cloud Park to increase the area available for recreational activities.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: General Fund 
Cost: $15,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 
Exhibit C 



CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-O- 

 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT TO EXPAND 
THOMAS CLOUD PARK BY NINE ACRES. 
 
WHEREAS, Oakes Tree Development (the “Developer”) has proposed to construct single-family 
homes (the “Project”) on property with the Montgomery County Parcel Number I39 00802 0033 (the 
“Parcel”) for which a proposed site plan for the Project is attached hereto as Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parcel is located within the City of Riverside, Ohio (“Riverside”); and 
  
WHEREAS, approximately nine (9) acres (the “Acres”) of the Parcel can only be accessed via the 
City of Huber Heights (“Huber Heights”) roadway infrastructure on Harshmanville Road, a map of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit B; and  
  
WHEREAS, the Developer, Riverside, and Huber Heights wish for the Project to proceed but 
acknowledge that developing the Acres presents certain practical challenges with respect to 
providing basic governmental services; and 

 
WHEREAS, Huber Heights has previously expressed an interest in purchasing the Acres for the 
purposes of expanding Thomas Cloud Park. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1.   The City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to sign the attached agreement, 
attached hereto as Exhibit C, or an agreement substantially similar, as approved by the Law Director. 
 
Section 2.   The City Manager is further directed and authorized to apply for those qualifying 
grant opportunities necessary to support and advance the acquisition of the aforedescribed Acres.  
 
Section 3.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 4.   This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the Charter 
of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________ , 2022; 
______  Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________  
Clerk of Council     Mayor 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Date       Date 



STM STM

p
:\2

10
62

_t
h

irt
y-

o
n

e
-a

cr
e

\d
es

ig
n

\r
oa

dw
ay

\s
he

et
s\

da
yt

on
 in

d
us

tr
ia

l p
ar

k 
p

la
n 

sh
e

et
_

riv
e

rs
id

e.
d

w
g

P
lo

tt
e

d 
by

: s
to

b
e

D
a

te
: 

10
/2

0/
2

0
2

1 
3

:2
8

 P
M

PROJECT NUMBER

DATE

SHEET NUMBER

N
O

.
D

A
T

E
R

E
V

IS
IO

N
B

Y

P
LA

N
S

 P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 F
O

R
:

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

 P
L

A
N

D
A

Y
T

O
N

 I
N

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 P

A
R

K

R
IV

E
R

S
ID

E
M

O
N

T
G

O
M

E
R

Y
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
, O

H
IO

1421062

10/20/2021

1

Feet
0 150 300

EXHIBIT A



·
Exhibit B

1 inch = 188 feet Date: 5/2/2022



EXHIBIT C 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN OAKES TREES DEVELOPMENT;  
THE CITY OF RIVERSIDE, OHIO; AND THE CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS, OHIO 
 
 WHEREAS, Oakes Trees Development (the “Developer”) has proposed to construct 
single-family homes (the “Project”) on Montgomery County parcel identification number I39 
00802 0033 (the “Parcel”), a proposed site plan for the Project is attached hereto as Exhibit A for 
reference; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Parcel is located within the City of Riverside, Ohio (“Riverside”); and 
  

WHEREAS, approximately nine (9) acres (the “Acres”) of the Parcel can only be 
accessed via the City of Huber Heights’ (“Huber Heights”) roadway infrastructure on 
Harshmanville Road, a map of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B for reference; and  
  

WHEREAS, the Developer, Riverside, and Huber Heights wish for the Project to proceed 
but acknowledge that developing the Acres presents certain practical challenges with respect to 
providing basic governmental services; and 
  

WHEREAS, the Developer, Riverside, and Huber Heights met and, in the interest of 
advancing the Project in a manner that benefits all the parties, have agreed that: 

1) The Developer willingly offers for sale, and Huber Heights willingly agrees to purchase, 
the Acres under the mutually agreeable terms and conditions: 
 

a. The agreed upon purchase price for the Acres shall be established via an appraisal 
performed by a licensed, neutral third party in accordance to the Uniform 
Appraisal Standard for Federal Land Acquisitions or the Developer’s purchase 
price of $18,000 per acre, whichever amount is greater.  The cost of said appraisal 
shall be paid equally by the Developer and Huber Heights. .  
 

b. The  Acres shall be purchased for the purposes of expanding Tom Cloud Park, 
which is immediately adject to the Acres’ eastern boundary line.  

 
c. Huber Heights shall have five (5) years from the date of this agreement’s 

execution of this agreement to complete its acquisition of the Acres.  The purpose 
being to provide Huber Heights sufficient time and opportunity to apply for the 
grant funding necessary to purchase the Acres in accordance with the conditions 
noted above.  

 
d. In exchange for the time considerations noted in Section 1(c), Huber Heights 

agrees to pay the Developer earnest monies.  For the purposes of determining 
earnest payments in absences of an appraisal, the parties agree that Developer’s 
purchase price of $18,000 per acre shall be used.  Total interest monies shall equal 
20% of the total purchase price of the Acres which will paid in the amounts and 
on the dates as follows: 

 
i. $  15,000.00 upon the execution of this agreement; 



EXHIBIT C 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

ii. $  7,500.00on or before July 1, 2023; 
iii. $  5,000.00 on or before July 1, 2024; 
iv. $  2,500.00 on or before July 1, 2025;  
v. $  2,500.00 on or before July 1, 2026. 

 
If appraisal amount comes in higher than the $18,000 per acre price, the City will add the 
difference to their next deposit amount in order to get the deposit to 20% of the purchase 
price.  
Provided that the City is able to obtain the grant(s) necessary to purchase the acres on or 
before December 31, 2026, those monies paid in earnest in advance of the grant’s award 
shall be applied toward the purchase of the property and, if possible, applied as the City’s 
matching percentage of the awarded grant.  
 

2) In the event the Huber Heights has not successfully secured the necessary grant(s) to 
acquire the Acres by December 31, 2026, those earnest monies paid by Huber Heights as 
noted in Section1(d) shall be forfeit to the Developer unless subsequent terms and 
conditions can be negotiated by and agreed to by the Developer and Huber Heights. 
 

3)  Riverside acknowledges that Huber Heights’ efforts to expand Tom Cloud Park presents 
an opportunity for improved reactional opportunities to its future residents within the 
Project. Upon the execution of this agreement, Riverside agrees to adopt a resolution in 
support of Huber Heights’ efforts to expand Tom Cloud Park. 
 

4) Should Huber Heights successfully obtain the grant funds necessary to purchase the 
Acres, Riverside agrees and commits to meet with Huber Heights for the purposes of 
discussing and planning the access to and development of the Acres and each 
community’s respective role in executing and supporting such plans. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE AGRRED AMONGST THE PARTIES, the Developer, Huber Heights, 

and Riverside enter into this Agreement in furtherance of their mutual interests and benefit. 
 
 
            
Mr. Lance Oakes, Principal     Date 
Oakes Trees Development 
 

  
            
Mr. Bryan RH Chodkowski,. Interim City Manager  Date 
City of Huber Heights, OH 

 
 

            
Mr. Joshua Rauch, City Manager     Date 
City of Riverside, OH 



   
AI-8485     New Business      G.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Carriage Trails - Special Assessments - Sections 2-5/7-5 - Resolution Of Necessity
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Declaring It Necessary To Improve Public Streets And Easements In Section 2 - Phase 5
And Section 7 - Phase 5 By Constructing And Installing Certain Public Infrastructure Improvements,
Including Street Improvements, Subbase, Concrete Curb/Gutter With Drainage, Asphalt, Street Lights
And Signs, Sidewalk, Survey Work And Engineering, And In Each Case, All Other Costs And
Improvements Necessary And Appurtenant Thereto.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
DEC Land Company has requested that the City provide funding for a portion of the costs of
constructing the public streets within Sections 2-5 and 7-5 of the Carriage Trails development through
the use of special assessments.  DEC has requested the City provide funding in the amount of
$1,016,000, which is $8,000 per lot for the 127 lots proposed for construction.  DEC has asked the City
to then assess each of the 127 newly created lots $650 per lot per year for 25 years in order to repay
the funding provided for this portion of the construction costs for the public improvements (the roads). 
In order to accomplish this, the City will need to pass a Resolution Of Necessity and an Ordinance To
Proceed with the improvement - both of which are included in the meeting packet for Council's
consideration.  This item is the Resolution Of Necessity.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Resolution 
Exhibit A 



 

1 
 
 

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R- 

 
 
DECLARING IT NECESSARY TO IMPROVE PUBLIC STREETS AND EASEMENTS IN 
SECTION 2 - PHASE 5 AND SECTION 7 - PHASE 5 BY CONSTRUCTING AND INSTALLING 
CERTAIN PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING STREET 
IMPROVEMENTS, SUBBASE, CONCRETE CURB/GUTTER WITH DRAINAGE, ASPHALT, 
STREET LIGHTS AND SIGNS, SIDEWALK, SURVEY WORK AND ENGINEERING, AND IN 
EACH CASE, ALL OTHER COSTS AND IMPROVEMENTS NECESSARY AND 
APPURTENANT THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, the owner of 100 percent of the lots and lands to be assessed for the Improvement 
(described in Section 2) has petitioned this Council (that Petition for Special Assessments and 
Affidavit is attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference and is referred to 
herein as the "Petition") for the construction of the Improvement (as defined in Section 2), and 
further, that there be assessed against the real property described in the Petition certain costs of the 
Improvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has heretofore directed that the plans, specifications, profiles and estimate 
of cost be prepared for the Improvement; and 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has determined to adopt this Resolution to accept the Petition and approve 
the plans, specifications, profiles and estimate of cost of the Improvement, as prepared by the 
Developer in conjunction with IBI Group Inc. (f/k/a ME Companies Inc.), and to further provide for 
such other terms and provisions relating to the Improvement as are set forth in this Resolution. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, that: 
 
Section 1.   This Council hereby finds that the Petition has been signed by the owners of 100 
percent of the lots and lands to be assessed for the Improvement. 
 
Section 2.   It is declared necessary to improve public streets and easements by constructing and 
installing on the Property (as described in the Petition) excavating, grading, paving, constructing and 
installing street improvements, including subbase, concrete curb/gutter with drainage, asphalt, street 
lights and signs, sidewalk, survey work and engineering, and in each case, all other costs and 
improvements necessary and appurtenant thereto (collectively, the "Improvement"). 
 
Section 3.  The plans, specifications, profiles and estimate of cost of the Improvement, which 
have been prepared by the Developer and IBI Group Inc., and which are now on file in the Office of 
the Clerk of Council, are approved.  The Improvement shall be made in accordance with, and the 
grade of the Improvement and of any street shall be the grade as shown on, the plans, specifications 
and profiles for the Improvement. 
 
Section 4.   This Council finds and determines that (a) the Improvement is conducive to the 
public health, convenience and welfare of this City and the inhabitants thereof and (b) the lots and 
lands to be assessed as described in Section 9 hereof and in the Petition are specially benefited by the 
Improvement. 
 
Section 5.    This Council hereby accepts the Petition.  Subject to the provisions of and limitations 
set forth in the Petition, $1,016,000.00 of the costs of the Improvement (plus interest on the costs of 
the Improvement to be computed in accordance with Sections 1 and 2 of the Petition) shall be 
assessed against the real property described in and pursuant to the Petition.  Any additional costs of 
the Improvement shall be paid by the landowner. 
 
Section 6.    The cost of the Improvement shall include the cost of preliminary and other surveys, 
plans, specifications, profiles and estimates and of printing, serving and publishing notices, 
resolutions and ordinances, the amount or any damages resulting from the Improvement and the 
interest thereon, the costs incurred in connection with the preparation, levy and collection of the 
special assessments, the cost of purchasing, appropriating, and otherwise acquiring any real estate or 
interest therein required for the Improvement, expenses of legal services including obtaining  legal  



 

2 
 
 

opinions, cost of labor and material and interest on securities issued  in anticipation of the levy and 
collection of the special assessments, together with all necessary expenditures. 
 
Section 7.   The City Engineer is authorized and directed to prepare and file, or cause to be 
prepared and filed, in the Office of the Clerk of Council the estimated special assessments of the cost 
of the Improvement described in this Resolution.  Those estimated special assessments shall be 
based upon the estimate of cost of the Improvement now on file in the Office of the Clerk of Council 
and shall be prepared pursuant to the provisions of this Resolution and the Petition. 
 
Section 8.   The special assessments to be levied shall be paid in twenty-five (25) annual 
installments of $650.00 (plus any administrative or similar collection or processing fee) for Sections 
2-5 and 7-5 (each annual installment to be payable semi-annually at the time real estate taxes in 
Miami County, Ohio are payable), together with interest on the unpaid principal amount of each 
special assessment as provided for by law and in accordance with the Petition and the ordinance 
levying the final special assessments. 
 
Section 9.   This City has reviewed the plans and specifications and the associated cost estimates 
for the proposed Improvements as detailed in the Petition and this Council finds and determines that 
the average useful life of the Improvements is at least 28 years. 
 
Section 10.   The City shall directly reimburse the Developer as and when the special assessments 
are collected for the Developer’s costs and interest thereon.  The City shall pay the Developer for a 
portion of the Improvement as set forth in the Petition, but only as and when the City receives these 
funds from the assessments described in the Petition.  The remainder of the entire cost of the 
Improvement, after application of the special assessments, shall be paid by the landowner.  The City 
assumes no obligation beyond the transfer of the assessments to the Developer following completion 
of the Improvements.   
 
Section 11.   It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 
were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 12.   This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the _____ day of ____________, 2022. 
____ Yeas; ____ Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
             
Clerk of Council     Mayor 
 
             
Date       Date 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 2022-R-________ adopted by the Council of 
the City of Huber Heights, on ____________________, 2022. 
 
 
             
       Clerk of Council 



EXHIBIT A

May 11

















   
AI-8486     New Business      H.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Carriage Trails Sections 2-5/7-5 - Special Assessment Request - Ordinance To Proceed
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
An Ordinance Determining To Proceed With The Improvement Of Public Streets And Easements, In
Section 2- Phase 5 And Section 7 - Phase 5 By Constructing And Installing Certain Public
Infrastructure Improvements, Including Street Improvements, Subbase, Concrete Curb/Gutter With
Drainage, Asphalt, Street Lights And Signs, Sidewalk, Survey Work And Engineering, And In Each
Case, All Other Costs And Improvements Necessary And Appurtenant Thereto.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
DEC Land Company has requested that the City provide funding for a portion of the costs of
constructing the public streets within Sections 2-5 and 7- 5 of the Carriage Trails development through
the use of special assessments.  DEC has requested the City provide funding in the amount of
$1,016,000 which is $8,000 per lot for the 127 lots proposed for construction.  DEC has asked the City
to then assess each of the 127 newly created lots $650 per lot per year for 25 years in order to repay
the funding provided for this portion of the construction costs for the public improvements (the roads). 
In order to accomplish this the City will need to pass a Resolution Of Necessity and an Ordinance To
Proceed with the improvement - both of which are included in the meeting packet for Council's
consideration.  This item is the Ordinance To Proceed.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Ordinance 



 

 

CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2022-O- 

 
 
DETERMINING TO PROCEED WITH THE IMPROVEMENT OF PUBLIC STREETS AND 
EASEMENTS, IN SECTION 2- PHASE 5 AND SECTION 7 - PHASE 5 BY CONSTRUCTING 
AND INSTALLING CERTAIN PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING 
STREET IMPROVEMENTS, SUBBASE, CONCRETE CURB/GUTTER WITH DRAINAGE, 
ASPHALT, STREET LIGHTS AND SIGNS, SIDEWALK, SURVEY WORK AND 
ENGINEERING, AND IN EACH CASE, ALL OTHER COSTS AND IMPROVEMENTS 
NECESSARY AND APPURTENANT THERETO. 
 
WHEREAS, this Council has adopted Resolution No. 2022-R-____ on ________, 2022 (the 
“Resolution of Necessity”), declaring the necessity of making the Improvement described in Section 
1. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio, that: 
 
Section 1. It is determined to proceed with the improvement of public streets and easements by 
constructing and installing on the Property (as described in the Petition) certain public infrastructure 
improvements, including street improvements, subbase, concrete curb/gutter with drainage, asphalt, 
street lights and signs, sidewalk, survey work and engineering, and in each case, all other costs and 
improvements necessary and appurtenant thereto (collectively, the “Improvement”) more fully 
described in the plans and specifications on file in the Office of the Clerk of Council. 
 
Section 2. The Improvement shall be made in accordance with the provisions of the Resolution 
of Necessity (including the Petition referenced therein and attached thereto) and with the plans, 
specifications, profiles and estimate of cost previously approved and now on file in the Office of the 
Clerk of Council. 
 
Section 3. The portion of the cost of the Improvement to be assessed in accordance with the 
Resolution of Necessity and the related Petition shall be assessed in the manner and pursuant to the 
payment schedule set forth, and on the lots and lands described, in that Resolution and the related 
Petition. 
 
Section 4. The City shall pay the Developer for a portion of the Improvement as set forth in the 
Petition, but only as and when the City receives these funds from the assessments described in the 
Petition.  All costs shall be paid by the Developer or the landowner, and the City assumes no 
obligation beyond the transfer of the assessments it receives to the Developer following completion 
of the Improvements. 
 
Section 5. All claims for damages resulting from the Improvement that have been or are legally 
filed shall be inquired into after completion of the Improvement, and the City Attorney is authorized 
and directed to institute legal proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction to inquire into those 
claims. 
 
Section 6. The estimated special assessments previously prepared and filed in the Office of the 
Clerk of Council and in accordance with the Resolution of Necessity and the related Petition are 
adopted. 
 
Section 7. The Clerk of Council shall deliver a certificate copy of this Ordinance to the County 
Auditor of Miami County, Ohio, within 15 days after its passage. 
 
Section 8. Subject to the provisions of Section 727.24 of the Revised Code, the City Manager is 
authorized and directed to work with the Developer to proceed with contracting for the 
Improvement, and the Improvement shall be paid for by the Developer, which shall be reimbursed 
by the special assessments, all as provided in the Resolution of Necessity. 
 
Section 9. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council concerning 
and relating to the passage of this Ordinance were adopted in an open meeting of this Council and 
that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in such formal action 



 

 

were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal requirements including Section 
121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
Section 10. This Ordinance shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the ______ day of _____________, 2022; 
______ Yeas; ______  Nays. 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
______________________________ ________________________________   
Clerk of Council    Mayor 
 
______________________________ _________________________________   
Date      Date 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATE 
 
The undersigned, Clerk of Council of the City of Huber Heights, Ohio, hereby certifies that the 
foregoing is a true and correct copy of Ordinance No. 2022-O-________ passed by the City Council 
of Huber Heights, on ______________, 2022. 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
        Clerk of Council 



   
AI-8482     New Business      I.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Water Main Replacement Program - Award Contract
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Increasing The Not To Exceed Amount And Authorizing The City Manager To Enter Into A
Contract For The 2022 Water Main Replacement Project.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This legislation will authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with M & T Excavating as the
lowest and best bidder for Phases 1, 2, and 3 of the 2022 Water Main Replacement Program.  The
Water Fund will be utilized to construct these phases at a cost not to exceed $1,850,000.
 
Seven bids were received for the 2022 Water Main Replacement Program which includes 5 Phases of
construction work. 
 
Phase 1 consists of replacing water main, fire hydrants and appurtenances on Hubbard Drive from
Morley to Hemingway and on Alter Road from Hubbard to Menlo.  The lowest bidder for this phase was
M & T Excavating at a cost of $633,928.
 
Phase 2 consists of replacing water main, fire hydrants and appurtenances on Holbrook Drive from
Harshmanville to Helwig and on Helwig Drive from Holbrook to Alter.  The lowest bidder for this phase
was M & T Excavating at a cost of $561,069.
 
Phase 3 consists of replacing water main, fire hydrants and appurtenances on Hubbard Drive from
Handel Court to cul-de-sac and on Hinckley Court from Hubbard south of Handel to 800 feet east.  The
lowest bidder for this phase was also M & T Excavating at a cost of $535,237.
 
Phase 4 and 5 consists of replacing water main, fire hydrants and appurtenances on Cruxten Drive
from Chesham to Tilbury and on Tomberg Street from Powell Road to Fishburg.  Because of the higher
cost, City Staff is recommending that the reconstruction of these two phases be deferred to next year
when more funding will be available.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: Water Fund
Cost: $1,850,000
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): No



Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): Yes
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Project Map 
Bid Results 
Resolution 







CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
 RESOLUTION 2022-R- 
 
 
INCREASING THE NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY 
MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A CONTRACT FOR THE 2022 WATER MAIN 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT. 
 
WHEREAS, City Council under Resolution No. 2022-R-7120, dated April 25, 2022, has 
previously authorized the securing of bids for the 2022 Water Main Replacement program; and 
 
WHEREAS, construction bids were received on May 27, 2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, there are adequate funds available to cover the cost of this work. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of Huber Heights, Ohio that: 
 
Section 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for Section A, 
Phase 1:  Hubbard Drive from Morley Lane to Hemingway Road and Alter Road from Hubbard 
Drive to Menlo Lane with M&T Excavating, LLC as the lowest and best bidder at a cost not to 
exceed $673,850.00 on the terms and conditions as substantially set forth in the specifications of 
the contract. 
 
Section 2. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for Section A, 
Phase 2:  Holbrook Drive from Harshmanville Road to Helwig Drive and Helwig Drive from 
Holbrook Drive to Alter Road with M&T Excavating, LLC.as the lowest and best bidder at a 
cost not to exceed $600,990.00 on the terms and conditions as substantially set forth in the 
specifications of the contract. 
 
Section 3. The City Manager is hereby authorized to enter into a contract for Section A, 
Phase 3:  Hubbard Drive from Handel Court to cul-de-sac and Hinckley Court from Hubbard 
Drive south of Handel Court to 800 feet east with M&T Excavating, LLC as the lowest and best 
bidder at a cost not to exceed $575,160.00 on the terms and conditions as substantially set forth 
in the specifications of the contract. 
 
Section 4. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.. 
 
Section 5. This Resolution shall go into effect upon its passage as provided by law and the 
Charter of the City of Huber Heights. 
 
Passed by Council on the _________ day of __________________, 2022; 
_________Yeas; _________Nays. 
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Clerk of Council     Mayor 
 
________________________________  ________________________________ 
Date           Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 



   
AI-8483     New Business      J.        
City Council Meeting City Manager    
Meeting Date: 06/27/2022  
Resolution To Appropriate Property - Well Field
Submitted By: Anthony Rodgers
Department: City Council
Council Committee Review?: Council

Work
Session

Date(s) of Committee Review: 06/21/2022

Audio-Visual Needs: None Emergency Legislation?: No

Motion/Ordinance/
Resolution No.:

Agenda Item Description or Legislation Title
A Resolution Setting Forth The Intention To Appropriate Certain Land Adjacent To The City Well Field
For Public Purposes.
(first reading)

Purpose and Background
This Resolution is for the intention to appropriate two properties on Rip Rap Road for providing water
supply for the City and its inhabitants with the construction of wells, pumps, and water works.  A map is
included to show the location and size of the two properties.  A description of the properties (Exhibit A
and Exhibit B), as stated in the Resolution, are not included at this time, but will be included with the
final Resolution presented at the City Council Meeting.

Fiscal Impact
Source of Funds: N/A
Cost: N/A
Recurring Cost? (Yes/No): N/A
Funds Available in Current Budget? (Yes/No): N/A
Financial Implications:

Attachments
Map 
Resolution 
Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 





CITY OF HUBER HEIGHTS 
STATE OF OHIO 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2022-R- 

 
 

SETTING FORTH THE INTENTION TO APPROPRIATE CERTAIN LAND ADJACENT TO 
THE CITY WELL FIELD FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES. 
 
WHEREAS, the orderly and balanced development of the City of Huber Heights is necessary for 
the health, safety and general welfare of the citizens; and 

 
WHEREAS, there is a need for acquisition of certain property for providing a water supply for 
itself and its inhabitants by the construction of wells, pumps, and water works, and for the 
protection thereof; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has attempted to negotiate the purchase of the property but has not been 
able to reach an agreement with the property owner; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City deems it necessary to acquire the following properties for purposes of 
providing a water supply for itself and its inhabitants by the construction of wells, pumps, and 
water works, and for the protection thereof: 

  
44.2441 acres in fee of the property titled in the name of Carson Schwab and Hollie 
Alexandria Endsleigh located on the land off of Rip Rap Road being Montgomery 
County Parcel # P70 04009 0022 and # P70 04009 0023 more particularly described in 
Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated into this Resolution by reference. 
 
62.068 acres in fee of the property titled in the name of John Harvey Schwab, Jr. located 
on the land off of Rip Rap Road being Montgomery County Parcel # P70 04009 0091 
more particularly described in Exhibit B, which is attached hereto and incorporated into 
this Resolution by reference; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code Section 719.01 provides that any municipal corporation 
may appropriate, enter upon, and hold real estate within its corporate limit for the purpose of 
providing a water supply for itself and its inhabitants by the construction of wells, pumps, 
cisterns, aqueducts, water pipes, dams, reservoirs, reservoir sites, and water works, and for the 
protection thereof; and to provide for a supply of water for itself and its inhabitants; and  
 
WHEREAS, a Notice of Intent to Appropriate and Good Faith Offer were provided to the 
property owners by certified mail or personal services as required by the Ohio Revised Code; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Ohio Revised Code Section 719.04 prescribes that the legislative authority of a 
municipal corporation, whenever it is deemed necessary to appropriate property, must pass a 
resolution declaring such intent, defining the purpose of the appropriation, and setting forth the 
pertinent description of the land and the estate of interest therein described to be appropriated. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Huber Heights that: 
 
Section 1. It is the intent of the City of Huber Heights to appropriate a fee interest in and to 
the land as described in Exhibit A, the record title owner of all of such property being Carson 
Schwab and Hollie Alexandria Endsleigh.  
   
Section 2 It is the intent of the City of Huber Heights to appropriate a fee interest in and to 
the land as described in Exhibit B, the record title owner of all of such property being John 
Harvey Schwab, Jr.  
 
Section 3.  The purpose of the acquisitions is to acquire the land necessary for purpose of 
providing a water supply for itself and its inhabitants by the construction of wells, pumps, and 
water works, and for the protection thereof. 
 



Section 4. It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this Council 
concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were adopted in an open meeting of this 
Council and that all deliberations of this Council and of any of its Committees that resulted in 
such formal action were in meetings open to the public and in compliance with all legal 
requirements including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 
Section 5.   This Resolution shall go into effect at the earliest time provided by law. 
 
Passed by Council on the ____ day of _________, 2022.  
______ Yeas;  _____ Nays.  
 
Effective Date: 
 
AUTHENTICATION: 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Clerk of Council     Mayor 
 
____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
Date:        Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
 



lLEG AIL D E§CJRI!P'F[ 0 N 

TRACTI 

Situate in Fractional Section 5, Town 1, Range 8 MRS, and Section 35, Town 2 Range 8 MRS,
in the City of Huber Heights, Montgomery County, Ohio, being part of the 105 acre (Parcel 6) 
(by deed) Tract and part of the 19 acre (Parcel 7) (by Deed) tract conveyed to Harvey John 
Schwab and Walter Louis Schwab by deed recorded in Microfiche No. 85-496 BOl of the deed 
records of Montgomery County, Ohio, being part of the Miami and Erie Canal (abandoned) and 
being a tract of land more particularly described as follows: 

Starting for reference at a stone found at the southeast corner of Lot ELEVEN (11) ofTaybridge 
Industrial Park, Section Two, recorded in Plat Book 176, Page 2 of the Plat Records of said 
County; 

Thence from said starting point, N. 86° 44' 05" W with the South line of said Lot 11 and Lot 
TEN (10) of said Taybridge Industrial Park, Section Two, a distance of 816.63 feet to a 5/8" iron 
pin found at the southwest comer of said Lot 1 O; 

Thence N 86 ° 48' 12" W with the South line of the 31.572 acre tract conveyed to Jimsco, Inc. by 
deed recorded in MF# 92-461-AlO a distance of 86.78 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new 
corner, said pin being the true point of beginning for the herein described parcel; 

Thence from said true point of beginning S 03° 09' 10" W with a new division line through said 
19 acre tract and said 105 acre tract a distance of 1304.30 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new 
corner; 

Thence N 86° 50' 50" W with a new division line through said 105 acre tract parallel with and 
200.00 North of the South line of said Sections 35 and 5 a distance of 2558.51 feet (passing a 
5/8" iron pin set at the East right of way of Rip Rap Road (40' right of way) at 2516.50 feet and 
a mag nail set in the centerline of Rip Rap Road at 2537.09 feet) to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new 
comer on the East bank of the Great Miami River; 

Thence N 16° 50' 45" E with the East bank of the Great Miami River and its meanderings a 
distance of 945.63 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set at the southwest comer of the 5.183 acre tract 
conveyed to Robert L. Murray and Gladys J. Murray by deed recorded in MF #77-99-D02; 

Thence S. 86° 38' 26,, E with the South line of said 5.183 acre tract a distance of 1332.51 feet
(passing a mag nail set in the centerline of Rip Rap Road at 21.40 feet, a 5/8" iron pin set at the 
East right of way line of said Road at 41.97 feet and a 5/8" iron pin found at 1275.36 feet) to a 
5/8" iron pin set in the center of the abandoned Miami and Erie Canal (width varies); 

Thence N. 40° 54' 44" W with the center of said abandoned canal a distance of 385.71 feet to a 
5 8" ron pin set at an angle point n said centerline; 

EXHIBIT A



Thence N. 31° 47' 44" W continuing with the center of abandoned canal a distance of 139.37
feet to a 5/8" iron pin found at the southwest corner of said Jimsco, Inc. 31.572 acre tract;

Thence S. 86° 48' 12" E with the South line of said Jimsco, Inc. 31.572 acre tract a distance of
1350.22 feet to the True Point of Beginning, containing 62.068 acres of land (included 10.659
acres of said 19 acre tract, 51.409 acres of said 105 acre tract) and being 13.625 acres in said
Section 5 and 48.443 acres in said Section 35.

Also subject to a lease of the abandoned Miami and Erie Canal recorded in Lease Volume 101,
Page 440 of the Lease records of Montgomery County, Ohio.

This description prepared by McDougall Associates, Inc. based on a survey made by same in
June 2002 under the direct supervision of Thomas K. Marsh, PS #7735. All iron pins set are
30" x 5/8" capped "McDougall Assoc." Bearings are based on the north line Section 34, Town 2,
Range 8 MRS (S 86° 50' 50" E) as shown on Deed Book 2234, Page 363.

EXCEPTING THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED REAL EESTATE (17.8239 ACRES)

Situate in Section 5, Town 1, Range 8 MRS, and Section 35, Town 2, Range 8 MRS, in the City
of Huber Heights, Montgomery County, Ohio, and being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at a stone found at the southeast corner of Lot ELEVEN (11) of Taybridge
Industrial Park, Section 2, recorded in Plat Book 176, Page 2; thence with the South line of Lot
11, Section 2 and Lot FOURTEEN (14), Section 3, recorded in Plat Book 187, Page 20, North
84° 41' 59" West for a distance of 816.63 feet to an found iron pin and cap at the southwest
corner of Lot 14; thence with the south line of the 31.572 acre tract conveyed to JIMSCO, Inc.
by deed recorded in MF# 92-416 A10, for the following two calls: North 84° 46' 06" West,
passing a found iron pin and cap at 86.78 feet, for a total distance of 1437.03 feet to a 5/8" iron
pin and cap; thence with the lines of a 62.068 acres parcel of property conveyed to Todd A.
Schwab in IR Deed 17-027676, for the following three calls: South 29° 45' 38" East for a
distance of 139.37 feet; thence South 38° 52' 38" East for a distance of 385.71 feet; thence North
84° 36' 20" West for a distance of 543.34 feet to a set iron pin and the True Point of Beginning
for this description;

Thence with new division lines, for the following two calls: South 05° 11' 16" West for a
distance of 865.91 feet to a set iron pin; thence North 84° 48' 44" West passing through a set
iron pin on the East right of way of Rip Rap Road at 958.82 feet and a set mag nail in the
centerline of Rip Rap Road at 979.41 feet for a total distance of 1000.83 feet to a set iron pin on
the east bank of the Great Miami River, thence with said East bank, North 18° 52' 51" East for a
distance of 894.17 feet to a set iron pin; thence with the south line of a 5.183 acre parcel of
property conveyed to the City of Huber Heights in IR Deed 04-134093, South 84° 36' 20" East,
passing a set mag nail in the centerline of Rip Rap Road at 21.40 feet and a set iron pin on the
east right of way of Rip Rap Road at 41.97 feet, for a total distance of 789.17 feet to the Point of
Beginning, containing 17.8239 acres of land, 12.1142 acres in said Section 5 and 5.7097 acres in



said Section 35 as recorded in the Montgomery County Engineer's Record of Land Surveys in
Vol. 2018 Page 205.

The basis of bearings for this legal description is Ohio State Plane Grid Coordinates (NAD 83-
95). Monuments used Brink and Brink AZ MK. North 84° 38' 21" W. MCE VRS Calibration
2007 (GEOID 2003). All pins referred to as set are 5/8" iron pins with a plastic cap reading
"Scott 7407" affixed to the top.

The above legal description being taken from a survey and plat by IDE Incorporated, under the
supervision of Mark P. Scott, Ohio Registered Land Surveyor No. 7407, said survey being dated
June 25, 2018.

Parcel No. P70 04009 0022, 0023



 

EXHIBIT B

JLJEGAJL DJESCRIPTKON 

TRACT U 

Situate in Fractional Section 5, Town 1, Range 8 MRs, and Section 35, Town 2, Range 8 MRS, 
in the City of Huber Heights, Mqntgomery County, Ohio, being part of the 105 acre (Parcel 6) 
(by deed) tract and part of the 19 acre (Parcel 7) (by deed) tract conveyed to Harvey John 
Schwab and Walter Louis Schwab by deed recorded in Microfiche No. 85-496 BOl of the Deed 
Records of Montgomery County, Ohio, being part of the Miami and Erie Canal (abandoned) 
and being a tract of land more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a stone found at the southeast corner of Lot ELEVEN (11) ofTaybridge 
Industrial Park, Section Two, recorded in Plat Book 176, Page 2 of the Plat Records of said 
County; 

Thence from said Point of Beginning S. 03° 25' 03" W with the West line of the 10.00 acre tract 
conveyed to Bowser-Momer Properties, Limited Partnership by deed recorded in Microfiche 

No. 89-44-B07 a distance of 321.92 feet to a 5/8'' iron pin found at the southwest comer of said 
tract;

Thence South 86° 46' 26" E with the South line of said 10.00 acre tract and the South line of 
the 20.000 acre tract conveyed to the State of Ohio by deed recorded in MF #77-95-E02 and as 
shown on SUR 3-M-730 of the Montgomery County Engineer's Record of Land Surveys a 
distance of 703 .69 feet to a stone found at a northeast corner of Lot 119 of Willow Creek 
Estates, recorded in Plat Book 140, Page 31; 

Thence S. 03 ° 04' 00" W with the west line of said Lot 119 a distance of 518 .9 5 feet to a W' 
iron pipe found at the northwest comer of Lot THIRTEEN THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED 
FOUR 
(13104) of Herbert C. Huber Plat No. 52, Section Eight ("B", recorded in PB 100, Page 74; 

Thence S. 03° 14' 40" W with the west line of said Lot 13104 a distance of 660.86 feet to a%" 
iron pin found at the southwest comer of said Lot 13104, said pin being on the south line of 
said Section 35; 

Thence N. 86° 50' 50" W with the south line of said Sections 35 and 5, the North line of the 
171.0112 acre tract conveyed to Meridian Land Group by deed recorded in MF# 00-416-A08 
and as shown on SUR 2000-0211, a Corporation Line of the City of Huber Heights, the north 
line of Part Lot 80788, Lots 80793, 80794, 80795, 80797 and 80798 of the Revised and 
Consecutive Numbers of Lots on the Plat of the City of Dayton, Ohio, all of which conveyed to 
American Aggregates Corporation by deed recorded in Deed Book 2234, Page 363, the north 
line of Part Lot 80788 (l.656 acres) conveyed to Five Rivers Metroparks by deed recorded in 
MF #99-790-Al 1 and as shown on SUR 1999-364 a distance of 4209.83 feet (passing a 5/8" 
iron pin set at the east right-of-way line of Rip Rap Road (40' right-of-way) at 4164.13 feet and 
a 
5/8" iron pin found at the centerline of said road at 4184.96 feet) to a stone with an "X" found 
on the East bank of the Great Miami River at the northwest comer of said Part Lot 80788; 

Thence N 14° 10' 45" E with the East bank of the Great Miami River and its meanderings a 
distance of 57.11 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set; 



Thence N. 16° 50' 45" E continuing with the East bank of the Great Miami River and its
meanderings a distance of 148.15 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new corner;

Thence S 86° 50' 50" E with a new division line through said 105 acre tract parallel with and
200.00' north of the South line of said Sections 5 and 35 a distance of 2558.51 feet (passing a
MAG nail set in the centerline of Rip Rap Road at 21.42 feet and a 5/8" iron pin set at the East
right-of-way of said road at 42.01 feet) to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new corner;

Thence N 03° 09' 10" E with a new division line through said 105 acre tract and said 19 acre
tract a distance of 1304.30 feet to a 5/8" iron pin set for a new corner on the south line of the
31.572 acre tract conveyed to Jimsco, Inc. by deed recorded in MF #92-416-A10;

Thence S. 86° 48' 12" E with the South line of said 31.572 acre tract a distance of 86.78 feet to a
5/8" iron pin found at the southwest corner of Lot 12 of said Taybridge Industrial Park, Section
Two;

Thence S. 86° 44' 05" E with the South line of said Lots 12 and 11 a distance of 816.63 feet to
the Point of Beginning, containing 62.068 acres of land, (including 8.094 acres of said 19 acre
tract, 53.974 acres of said 105 acre tract) and being 3.701 acres in said Section 5 and 58.367
acres in said Section 35, subject to all legal conditions, easements, and rights-of-way pertaining
to the premises herein described. Also subject to a lease of the abandoned Miami and Erie
Canal recorded in Lease Volume 101, Page 400 of the Lease Records of Montgomery County,
Ohio. This description prepared by McDougall Associates, Inc. based on a survey made by
same in June 2002 under the direct supervision of Thomas K. Marsh, PS #7735. All iron pins
set are 30" x 5/8" capped "McDougall Assoc.". Bearings are based on the north line of Sections
34, Town 2, Range 8 MRs (S 86° 50' 50" E) as shown on Deed Book 2234, Page 363.

Parcel No. P70 04009 0091


	Agenda
	AI_8492_Approval of Minutes - 6/13/22
	       ATT_Minutes
	AI_8393_Huber Heights Police Division K9 Recognition Presentations
	AI_8471_2022 Sidewalk Program Assessments Announcement
	       ATT_2022 Sidewalk Program Announcement
	AI_8490_Part One - Administrative Code - Huber Heights Codified Ordinances - Changes
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8487_City Code - Supplement 10 - Adopting Ordinance
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8491_City Manager Appointment/Professional Services Agreement - R. Dzik
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8488_2022 Energy Aggregation 
	AI_8489_Supplemental Appropriations
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8481_Increase Not To Exceed Amount - Diesel Fuel/Gasoline Vendors
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8484_Thomas Cloud Park Expansion Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B
	       ATT_Exhibit C
	AI_8485_Carriage Trails - Special Assessments - Sections 2-5/7-5 - Resolution Of Necessity
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	AI_8486_Carriage Trails Sections 2-5/7-5 - Special Assessment Request - Ordinance To Proceed
	       ATT_Ordinance
	AI_8482_Water Main Replacement Program - Award Contract
	       ATT_Project Map
	       ATT_Bid Results
	       ATT_Resolution
	AI_8483_Resolution To Appropriate Property - Well Field
	       ATT_Map
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Exhibit B

